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10:39 A. M. EDT 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

Off ice of the Press Secretary 

PRESS BRIEFING 
BY 

MARLIN FITZWATER 

October 5, 1988 

The Briefing Room 

MR. FITZWATER: First of all, Olympic athletes visit the 
White House. 

Q Will Bush be here? (Laughter.) 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. 

Q That's a good question. 

MR. FITZWATER: Monday, October 24, at 11:00 a.m. the 
United States Olympic team has been invited by the President to come 
pay us a visit. 

Q Monday the what? 

MR. FITZWATER: The 24th of October. 

Q Leave your steroids at home. (Laughter.) 

Q How many people are you expecting for this? 

MR. FITZWATER: The entire team. I don't know how many. 

Q You mean the U.S. team? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes, yes. 

The President 

Q That's a lot of people. 

Q How about the astronauts? 

MR. FITZWATER: on October 4, at 6:17 p.m. or so 
thereabouts, sent a message to Soviet General Secretary Gorbachev 
congratulating him on his new position. (Laughter.) 

Q Landsl i de election victory. 

Q It was a hard-fought election. 

MR. FITZWATER: In keeping with not passing these out, I 
will give you a paragraph from it. He says, "The people of the 
United States look forward to continuing the process of dialogue t hat 
you and I have established, which is aimed at steady progress toward 
a more stable, more peaceful and safer world. Please accept my 
hearty congratulations." President Reagan. 

Q Who was his media advisor, Marlin? (Laughter.) 

Q Marlin, a White House official has quoted -- a 
Reagan administration official is quoted today in The Washington 
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Times saying that there were KGB and Interior Ministry troops in Red 
Square in the days leading up to this emergency meeting last week. 
Is there any truth to that, as far as you know? 

MR. FITZWATER: (Laughter.) How would I know? 

Q There always are. 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. 

Q The mobilization --

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know, Nick. 

All right. Let's see here. We leave at 7:10 for the 
cornerstone-laying ceremony for the Holocaust Memorial. 

Q What? 

Q What? Tonight? 

MR. FITZWATER: At 11:10 a.m. this morning. 

Q 7/11. 

MR. FITZWATER: What did I say? 

Q Seven. 

MR. FITZWATER: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought I said 11. 
Speak up. Get a grip, Marlin. At 11:10 a.m. 

Q Are you coaching Qayle or anything? (Laughter.) 

Q Bush. He's coaching Bush. 

MR. FITZWATER: And the President meets at 3:45 p.m. with 
Yury and Tanya Zieman. 

Q Who are they? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yury and Tanya Zieman, with their younger 
daughter, 12-year-old Vera, arrived in the United States on August 
12, 1988, after a wait of more than a decade for permission to leave 
the Soviet Union. I don't believe Vera is with them this afternoon. 

MS. ARSHT: She is, Marlin. 

MR. FITZWATER: She ls? I am corrected. She is. 

President and Mrs. Reagan telephoned to congratulate them 
on the evening of their arrival. The Zieman's oldest daughter, 
Galena, and her husband Viktor, were permitted to emigrate in 1987, 
and they are now living in Brighton, Massachusetts. Yury, Tanya and 
Vera are living in Belmont, Massachusetts. Vera's enrolled in a 
school there in Cambridge, and Yury is a mathematician and computer 
scientist. 

Q Land of opportunity. 

Q Back can you do a schedule question here for a 
minute? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. 

Q On the cornerstone-laying ceremony --

MR. FITZWATER: Yes? 

Q I know he departs at 11:10 a.m., but the actual 
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ceremony is not until noon, is it? And what does he do after he gets 
there? Is there a reception or something? 

MR. FITZWATER: Do you have a detailed schedule? I do 
not have one. 

MS. ARSHT: had it yesterday. 

MR. FITZWATER: Ben, is there one back there? 

MR. JARRATT: It's in the President's schedule. 

MR. FITZWATER: It's in the President's schedule. All 
right, let's take a look at this. 

Q In other words, do we have to get there before noon? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. 

All right, let's see. The President leaves at 11:10 
a.m., arrives there, and there is a reception. 

Q Closed? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. Met by Mr. Harvey Meyerhoff, who is 
Chairman of the U.S. Holocaust Memorial Council. The President makes 
his remarks at 11:55 a.m. So it's open coverage. I would -- I don't 
know -- what's good advice for when to get there -- 11:30 a.m.? 
Anyway, he talks at 11:55 a.m. 

Q Indoors or out? 

MR. FITZWATER: The President concludes remarks at 12:10 
p.m. I think this is outside, isn't it, Ben? There is no indoors, 
is there? 

MR. JARRATT: It's outdoors. 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes, I mean it's -- they've got the 
ground cleared there, and it's -- I drive by every morning. But I'm 
assuming it's well, it has to be outside. 

Q Is there any coverage of the Zieman meeting? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. Coverage is still uncertain. I'll 
have to let you know later. There will be some kind of coverage, but 
we just don't know exactly what --

Q Are you open for questions, Marlin? 

Q Coverage of what? 

MR. FITZWATER: Sure. Go ahead. 

Q We have some. 

Q What about the "license to kill" directives that the 
President signed in 1 84, '85? 

MR. FITZWATER: 
the signing was fine. It was 
Intelligence Committees. 

MORE 
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Number four, the finding was rescinded by omission in a 
May 12, 1986 terrorism finding. And in May, 1987 the finding was 
formally and specifically rescinded, following review by the NSC of 
all findings. 

Q What was the last 

Q Can you go back? 

Q What was the last date? 

MR. FITZWATER: May, 1987. 

Q Can you just go back on one of those last things. 

MR. FITZWATER: That's all in Bob Woodward's story by the 
way. There's nothing new there. I simply think it's important to 
recount the_hi_s_t,Q_ry of this for the record . ----- ~ Q I b~ieve he sa~~tt~e committees were not informea 
at the time it was signed . ~ ~ 4-iv..1 J'c -2 

MR. No, he says they were. 
~~~~~~~~~ 

Q No, I think that was the second one he said they 
were told. 

Q I believe it was the second one. 

Q The first one they were not. 

MR. FITZWATER: Let me continue. Bob Woodward discusses 
this finding in his book on the CIA, chapter 20, pages 393 to 406, i n 
which he explains the finding was not -- I repeat not -- intended to 
authorize assassinations. Woodward says in his own book that this 
was not the President's intent when he signed the finding. I 
responded to that chapter in his book on this subject on September 
28, 1987 by saying that the President did not authorize 
assassinations, that was not the intent of the finding, and that the 
President's Executive Order of December of 1981 was the United States 
policy on assassination. The written and declared policy of the 
government and the President is that Executive Order which prohibits 
assassinations. 

In summary, this is an old story being rehashed again, 
interestingly timed, and it has no foundation. 

Why interestingly timed? Q 

Q 
order itself? 

Well then, how do you explain the language of the 

MR. FITZWATER: I would love to use Woodward's own 
language in his book to explain that, and I refer you to it, wish y ou 
all take a chance to read that. But I would say simply that as I 
said back in September, it was a counter-terrorism finding designed 
to deal with terrorism activities, but it did not authorize 
assassination. 

Q What then was the meaning of the good faith 
provision? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. I can't go through and 
interpret it, nor will I. 

Q It isn't being -- it is being interpreted as giving 
license, meaning immunity 

MR. FITZWATER: It was --
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Q -- to killers. 

MR. FITZWATER: It was interpreted that way by Bob 
Woodward, who did not interpret it that way in his book. 

Q 
interpret it? 

Well, wasn't that -- How does the President 

MR. FITZWATER: I just said no, it wasn't then, it isn't 
now. 

Q What did it mean then? What was its purpose? 

MR. FITZWATER: It was designed to authorize 
counter-terrorism activities. 

Q Including illegal activity? 

Q Well, doesn't counter-activity include activity 
which could result in deaths? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, I won't go through all that. 

Q Blowing up terrorist headquarters for example. 

MR. FITZWATER: I'm not going to go through and get 

Q 
jab at Bush? 

You said timely. You're saying this is a political 

think what 
MR. FITZWATER: Oh, I'll let you judge for yourself. I 

Q Well no, what do you say? 

Q Well, what did you mean by interestingly timed? 

Q You can't get by with this innuendo. 

MR. FITZWATER: I'll let you judge for yourself. 

Q What about reporting to the committee? Woodward 
says that it was not -- the original finding was not reported to t he 
committee. 

MR. FITZWATER: Woodward says in his book 

Q Or not until much later in any case. 

MR. FITZWATER: Woodward says in his book that President 
Reagan ordered Casey to report it to the committees and Casey did. 

Q It says i n the article that it wasn't. 

MR. FITZWATER: Well. 

Q Well, what's the fact? 

MR. FITZWATER: He's got a credibility problem. 

Q Well, what's the fact~?--~~~--

MR. FITZWATER: wa~ tJ V-ft 
Q It was? 

~vrD MR. FITZWATE · The fact · 

----Q At the time of 
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/e,; ~ 
lY / ~ "' ~ ,J 
cr~~~~ER: right. 

@ l Were they a stand Casey? (Laughter.) 

MR. FITZWATER: What? 

Q The question that you haven't -- that you're leaving 
open -­-- - -MR. FITZWATER: 
Iran-contra Counsel has it. 

The 
Wha 

Q 
his e 

MR. FITZWATER: He's making these charges. Bob Woodward 
is the only one who says there's an assassination attempt. It's not 
in the findings, it's not in any of the documents, it's not come from 
any of the committees. It's come from Bob Woodward. Ask him where 
he gets it. 

Q Were asking you, Marlin Fitzwater, what is the 
significance of the phrasing of the signing of the finding that 
permits these good faith authorizations? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, I'm not going to give you a 
specific definition. One, because I don't know and, two, because we 
wouldn't discuss it anyway. But the purpose was to authorize 
counterintelligence activities to combat terrori sm. 

Q And if those activities included deaths and they 
were done in good faith --

MR. FITZWATER: I'm not going to go into that. 

Q -- and they were deemed to be lawful --

MR. FITZWATER: The point is that they did not authorize 
assassinations, period. 

Q How do you know? You just told us you didn't know. 

Q You said you don't know. 

MR. FITZWATER: I said they did not authorize 
assassinations. 

Q How do you know that? 

MR. FITZWATER: Because there's an executive order i n 
effect that said they didn't. Because the Pres i dent says they 
didn't, they didn't. 

Q Well, these superceded the executive order. 

MR. FITZWATER: No, no, no. 

Q I want to try once more on timing. Are you relating 
its timing, the timing of the publication to the imminence of the 
elections? 

MR. FITZWATER: Oh, I leav e that to you. 

Q Then what did you mean by interesting timing, 
Marlin? 

Q Part of the problem here is definition of the word 
"assassination" because counterterrorism actions involve freeing 
hostages, for instance, or forestalling some sort of paramilitary 
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operation. You could have legal activity that wouldn't fall under 
the definition of assassination. Isn't this part of the problem? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, I won't give a definition. As I 
sa~d, it's been thoroughly discussed during the hearings and I don't 
need to go into it again. 

Q But activities short of going out and simply 
knocking somebody off -- rescuing a hostage which might result in 
death -- would that be authorized under this finding here? 

MR. FITZWATER: I won't comment. 

Q Why was it rescinded? After 80 people were killed 
at Beirut when they blew up a building? 

MR. FITZWATER: The timing was -- I don't know all the 
reasons for it, but they rescinded -- when a new terrorism finding 
was made in May of 1986 it was omitted, but I don't know why. And 
then when they were all reviewed again in May of 1 87, it was formally 
and specifically rescinded. But I don't have -- I don't know the 
reason. 

Q Marlin, it strikes me as uncharacteristic of you to 
say that something is interestingly timed and then say -- and then 
refuse to say what you mean. Are you saying that it's politically 
motivated? If it is, why don't you just say that? If it's not, why 
don't you say that? I mean, I don't really know what you mean. 

MR. FITZWATER: It is very unique of me -- (laughter) 
but I think this is an extraordinary cheap shot. It's not true. It 
impugns the President in a way that the author himself has denied in 
previously written stories and --

Q So you do think it impugns the President. 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, I won't say the words , but you can 

Q But, Marlin, you've raised 

Q That's not fair, Marlin. 

MR. FITZWATER: What do you mean it's not fair? Don't 
talk to me about fairness. 

Q Well, say what you mean then. Don't leave 
inuendoes. If you want to say something, say it. 

MR. FITZWATER: Bob, go ahead. 

Q You're not Larry Speakes. 

Q If it's a cheap shot , why don't you say very clearly 
why the order was rescinded? 

MR. FITZWATER: I just don't know why. 

Q Can we find that out? That seems sort of crucial. 

MR. FITZWATER: I assume -- I'll ask and see. I just 
don't know all the rationale. There were new orders -- new findings 
issued, dealt with in different ways, but why, I don't know. 

Q You're saying what your saying about this on the 
basis of asserting that there's really no new information in this 
article -- is that fundamentally the point you're trying to make? 
Therefore, there is no timely reason that this article appears at 
this time? 
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MR. FITZWATER: There is no new information in the 
article. 

Q Do you need someone to explain what you mean? 

Q Marlin, the article this morning goes a little bit 
beyond what was in the book because I read what was in the book this 
morning before coming in here. And Woodward is not saying that the 
finding was a license to kill. What he's referring to is the 
discussion within the government, within the administration, within 
the Congress. So I'm not quite sure what it is you're taking issue 
with. 

MR. FITZWATER: The Washington Post headline this morning 
says license to kill. 

Q Well, let's not talk about The Washington Post 
headline -- read the story. 

MR. FITZWATER: But I have to respond to the headline. I 
have to respond to the impression --

Q No, you should be responding to the story. 

MR. FITZWATER: And the story and the impression that is 
given by that story to the reader is license to kill. 

Q It says that some may have interpreted it that way. 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, the author interpreted it that way. 
He gave no 

Q No --

MR. FITZWATER: And the editors interpreted it that way. 
They put it in the headline. 

Q So you're responding to the headline. You're mad 
about the headline. 

MR. FITZWATER: I'm responding to the impression of the 
story, which is often the case. If you want to talk about inuendo. 

Q How does the President feel about it? 

MR. FITZWATER: He thinks it's very unfair. It's all 
been -- the matter has all been rehashed before. 

Q Did you talk to him about it, Marlin? 

Q These words out of his mouth or yours? 

MR. FITZWATER: My words. 

Q 
any other form, 

Does this good faith authorization exist today in 
any othe~r order -- __ ~ 

MR. FITZWATE J_ ~~ 
_u?~- L.5 

-- or w al't1y- ~escinded? Q 

MR. FITZWATER• Totally he says in the 
story. 

Q The ubiquitous Mr. Abul Hassan Bani Sadr tells the 
BBC that a shipment of arms furnished by the U.S. government has 
recently been delivered to Iran. Is that true? 

MR. FITZWATER: No, it's not true of U.S. arms of any 
kind, no. 
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Q No, no, a shipment of arms furnished by the United 
States --

MR. FITZWATER: No, that's not true. 

Q It could be anybody's arms, but they were furnished 
by the United States, he says. 

MR. FITZWATER: Not true. 

Q That's absolutely not true? 

Q No third countries? 

MR. FITZWATER: Not true. 

Q No, I'm serious. I mean, he's making these charges. 
I want to -- I'd like a serious response. 

MR. FITZWATER: Those charges are not true. None of 
them, top to bottom. Bani Sadr is full of beans. (Laughter.) 

Q Do you have a reaction to the Honduran foreign 
minister's appeal to the United Nations to expel the Contras from 
Honduras? 

MR. FITZWATER: Ooh, I overlooked that story completely. 
Do we have any guidance from State on that. I don't. I'm sorry, 
Mic. I heard that on the radio this morning and knew I should look 
into it, and didn't. 

Q Did we expect that kind of message from the 
Hondurans? Have they been communicating that to the U.S. privately? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know on a specific basis. ~e've 
been talking to them about the problem, of course, of the Contras are 
moving into Honduras to gather food and supplies and camps and what 
have you. But I just don't know about this specific move on their 
part. I will check that out. I just don't know. 

Q Marlin? 

Q Are we in turn encouraging Honduras to continue to 
harbor these Contras? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, of course. I mean, we've 
appreciated their using the land and supply bases and that sort of 
thing. 

Q Well, if you just heard about it this morning on the 
radio, and the indications are that this was sort of a that the 
U.S. was blindsided by this speech up in the U.N., did we expect this 
from the Hondurans? 

MR. FITZWATER: No, that -- I don't think that's fair in 
the sense that I just didn't know about it, but I don't know whether 
the State Department was aware of it or not. I'd have to call Abrams 
and see what he knew. 

Q Do you think Bani Sadr's comments are also 
politically motivated, and interestingly timed? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. They're interestingly 
timed, yes. 

Q Bani Sadr is sticking by his story on Lawless. I 
wanted to know, is Lawless still a CIA agent, and has the U.S. 
government tracked him down to find out what he's doing -- assuming 
your denials still stand? 

MORE #2326-10/05 



- 10 -

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know that for sure in terms of 
tracking him down. I don't -- he's not operating under our 
instruction or our direction or anything like that. What his private 
status is, I don't know, Mary. 

Q By "our" do you mean White House or do you mean the 
administration? 

MR. FITZWATER: The administration. 

Q Marlin, to take you back to the Woodward story on 
~~ one point, can you shed any light on why that good-faith exception 

{]J!'1. r; was originally put in these findings and then omitted and 
-[~Al> \ ~ subsequently specifically rescinded, suggesting that people found 
c;iv· ~ that language either to be too general or inappropriate for some 
IJ_yl ~ason? can you shed any light on that? 

,tJllQY'Y"_ f MR. FITZWATER: I can't really. The -- as I said, the 
~- _

1 
- entire executive order -- I mean, the finding, rather -- was 

-~ACr"' rescinded and replaced with a different one. The initial one related 
~v - just to Lebanon -- the one that has this language in it. The next 

~
'\ one was related to world-wide terrorism. And my assumption is, it 

' .~had to do with the whole focus of the later finding, but I don't know 
~ specifically. 

(lJ.f"' ~ Q If I can return to the Lawless thing for a minute, 
~ nf7 you, the President, other administration officials have been quite 
j.-J A'~ categorical the last two days in denying any negotiations, deals, et 

Af\/'- cetera, et cetera. Has somebody checked to make sure that Mr. 
/v Lawless is not operating over there, saying that he's representing 

the United States, whether mistakenly or not? I mean, is this just 
some are you just enunciating policy or has somebody looked in to 
this to see that its not true? 

MR. FITZWATER: We have looked into it to the extent o f 
knowing that he's not under the direction of a government agency or 
working for one or representing anyone. 

Q And that includes Vice President Bush? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes, that includes Vice President Bush. 
I don't know about whether anybody's talked to him or looked into 
what he's doing on his own. One of the phenomenon we have here is 
that there are a lot of people out bidding on their own. There are a 
lot of individuals saying they represent the government who don't. 
They have a lot of people who are trying to be brokers, who are 
trying to make a name for themselves, some trying to make money, some 
whose motives no one understands. 

Q But you're satisfied he's got no charter from the 
United States government, any agency in the government, to represent 
the United States? 

MR. FITZWATER: We are assured that by all the government 
agencies that are of any relevance . 

Q would they tell you? 

Q Back on the Woodward story 

MR. FITZWATER: I hope so. 

Q -- he quotes someone he identifies as a key source 
involved with the counter-terrorism findings, in saying that its that 
"astounding blank check and truly a license to kill provision." Ar e 
you doubting the voracity of that quote or are you saying that the 
person who said that had political motivations? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. It's a blind quote, who 
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knows where it came from. 

Q Is the President going to 

MR. FITZWATER: It's not true. I don't know who -­
anybody could 

Q But earlier you said it was Woodward making the 
charge. He is quoting someone making that charge. I mean that's the 
person that you said --

MR. FITZWATER: It's no name, how do I know who it is. 
As far as I'm concerned, it's Woodward, he's got to stand behind his 
sources. 

Q Is the President going to watch the debate? 

Q About the Contras, I understand that one of the 
leaders of the contras has said that he is reaching to the President 
asking him to request the release of the frozen weapons, the $16.5 
million, because two of the conditions have been met. Has the letter 
been received, and second, is the President going to act on it? 

MR. FITZWATER: I'll have to check the status of the 
letter. We are considering that possibility. There are a number of 
conditions which you're obviously aware of. We are analyzing that 
possibility, but a final decision has not been made at this point. 

Q When do you expect a final decision to be made? 

MR. FITZWATER: I just can't say. 

Q This is for release of --

MR. FITZWATER: Yes, the Byrd Amendment authorized the 
release of $16 million in lethal material that had been purchased 
earlier and was not delivered into Nicaragua. And it sets forth 
three or four findings that the President would make in requesting 
that release. I'm not sure I can remember them, but one was that the 
Sandinistas had -- were not -- had given up on the peace process or 
-- I'd better not try to characterize the words. But I can get that 
for you. 

Q But you say you think they have met these three or 
four conditions? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, Ann says the letter indicates t wo 
of the three and I think we probably agree with that. But the 
question is 

Q Which is what? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, let me see if I've got it here. I 
know I had it yesterday, but I may not have it today. 

Q Haven't the cease-fire negotiations resumed? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't believe I have it and I'd better 
get it for you, Helen, so I've got the words. But the words are in 
the law, three or four findings that have to be made, and I think i t 
is true that three or four of them -- two out of three we -- are 
obvious that they had met. The third one I'm not sure about. 

Q In his letter he mentions that the aid of the Soviet 
Union -- soviet bloc to Nicaragua is going on the same levels. 

MR. FITZWATER: Right. 

Q And that Nicaragua has more or less failed to --

MORE #2326-10/05 
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MR. FITZWATER: Have we seen the letter, Roman? Are you 
familiar with it? 

MR. POPADIUK: As of last night, we hadn't gotten it --

Q -- to fulfill the Esquipulas II agreement -- I mean 
against internal position? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. 

Q So you seem to agree with this argument that two of 
the conditions have been met? 

MR. FITZWATER: I would say informally, yes. 

Q Who is the letter from, Marlin? 

MR. FITZWATER: Who's it from, Ann? I don't know a thing 
about this. 

Q Alfredo Cesar. 

MR. FITZWATER: Maybe we haven't received it yet. They 
give you a copy first? You got that internal mail system of theirs? 

Here we go -- Byrd Amendment. In order to provide 
military aid under the Byrd Amendment, the following procedure must 
be carried out. The President must find that Nicaragua has caused a 
crisis in Central America. He must then consult with the four 
Central American democracies and report to Congress justifying his 
request. The justification must contain two out of the following 
three: a, there is a continuing unacceptable level of Soviet aid, 
which -- that's certainly the case; there is a Sandinista violation 
of the Esquipulas Agreement, and we believe that's the case; and the 
Sandinistas have initiated an all out attack against the Contras. I 
think that's the open question. 

Q If the Hondurans are --

MR. FITZWATER: If these conditions are met, the 
President would be authorized to have transported to the Contras up 
to $16.5 million of military aid that has already been appropriated 
and is currently under the control of Honduras. Additionally, if it 
is determined that it is desirable, the President could interchange 
military items needed by the Contras of comparable value with the 
material currently being held by Honduras. So, that's the -- that's 
what's in the law. 

Q But he hasn't met with these other democracies yet 
to trigger any of this, has he? 

MR. FITZWATER: No, not in a formal sense. We've had 
m.eetings and consultations and so forth. 

Q Do you need a formal consultation, or can you do it 
informally? 

MR. FITZWATER: Now, that I don't know. 

Q So, what do these weapons do? Just prolong --

MR. FITZWATER: Anyway, the status is that all of this is 
under consideration and -- but we haven't made a formal decision yet . 

Q Well, who wrote the letter? 

MR. FITZWATER: The letter, I don't know anything about. 
This is what's in the Byrd Amendment. 

Q Does there have to be yet another vote, also, to 

MORE #2326-10/05 



- 13 -

release this? 

MR. FITZWATER: Yes. 

Q And you don't have enough time to do that, do you? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, that's another issue. It was 
raised yesterday in the leadership meeting -- concerned about having 
time to have another vote, and that we need to be considering this. 
And General Powell assured them that it was under consideration. But 
that's the only status I have. 

Q Well, you could call --

Q Well, when are you going to don't you have to 
make a decision within the next or so for it to be meaningful? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, I don't know. We've had some 
indications that Congress is going to be in session next week. So, 
the timing is not clear. 

Q Is there any thought to -- within the administration 
to a special session -- calling Congress into act on this issue? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't think there's a lot of sentiment 
for that. (Laughter.) 

Q Will the President watch the debate tonight, and 
does he have any advice for Quayle? 

MR. FITZWATER: He will watch the debate tonight. He 
gave Senator Quayle the benefit of his advice last Sunday afternoon, 
but I don't have 

Q Saturday. 

MR. FITZWATER: -- any public -- Saturday, rather. I 
don't have any public 

Q What was his advice? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, they talked about just the 
President's experience in debates -- how it ebbs and flows. 

Q The California Highway? 

Q stay off the Pacific Coast Highway. (Laughter.) 

Q Tell him to stay off the California Highway? 

MR. FITZWATER: Helen, is that nice? 

Q Well, how will he watch it? I mean, will he be in 
the family quarters with Mrs. Reagan, or will somebody else be there? 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't think they'll have any guests. 
They -- the same way they watched the Dukakis-Bush debate -- in the 
Residence. 

Q What did you find out about the Education 
Department's refusal to fund the education --

MR . FITZWATER: I was afraid you were going to ask that 
question. Well, I tell you, I went back and read the story and I 
couldn't understand it. And I read the Department of Education's 
advice and I couldn't understand that either. 

Q That makes a bunch of us. (Laughter.) 

MR. FITZWATER: We posted it yesterday, but if any of you 
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figured it out 

Q I read your posting. What does it mean? 
(Laughter.) 

MR. FITZWATER: I don't know. It's all gobbledygook to 
me. But as near as I can tell, the Education Department did deny 
funding to this group because they didn't think the proposal was 
adequate and had trouble with the content of it. But that it was not 
due to not having anything on Nazis or Ku Klux Klan. 

Q Then what was it then? 

MR. FITZWATER: That, I don't know. Apparently the 
substance -- they thought that it was misdirected and wasn't the 
right quality and had some other -- I just don't have a very detailed 
explanation, frankly. But that's the best I can do for you, Bob, at 
the moment. 

Q What does the White House think of that decision? 
Do you have any reactions at all? 

MR. FITZWATER: Well, they certainly -- they probably are 
very good and valid reasons why they didn't choose that grantee. I 
mean, it looked from the beginning like a story of a grantee who was 
miffed because they didn't get their money. And somebody always gets 
a no and they certainly have the right to do that. Now, if there's 
anything in there having to do with the Ku Klux Klan and Nazis -­
certainly don't agree with that. I mean, that's deplorable and just 
on its face cannot be condoned and is -- I just can't believe it's 
true. 

Q But do you -- since we're talking a great deal about 
the timing of stories today, is it somewhat embarrassing to have this 
story come out on the eve of the day when the President's going to be 
laying the cornerstone for the Holocaust --

MR. FITZWATER: Well, it would be better not to have had 
it come out today. (Laughter.) 

Q Can you confirm that the Soviets have dropped the 
condition the exclusion of aircraft fighters -- aircrafts from the 
conventional talks? 

MR. FITZWATER: The Soviets did what? 

Q Dropped the demand that they had before that the 
fighters be excluded from the conventional talks. 

MR. FITZWATER: I haven't heard that. 

Q It's in The New York Times today. 

MR. FITZWATER: I didn't read it. 

THE PRESS: Thank you. 

END 11:09 A.M. EDT 

#2326-10/ 05 



WITHDRAWAL SHEET 
Ronald Reagan Library 

Collection Name 

CULVAHOUSE, ARTHUR B.:FILES 
Withdrawer 

DLB 5/14/2014 

File Folder 

IRAN/ARMS TRANSACTION: 198411985 PRESIDENTIAL 
FINDINS ON TERRORISM - LICENSE TO KILL (2 OF 2) 

Box Number 

CFOA 1131 

FOIA 

S643 

SYSTEMATIC 

137 

ID Document Type 

Document Description 

No of Doc Date Restric-
pages 

164956 MEMO 1 10/511988 

DUPLICATE OF #164953 

The above documents were not referred for declassification review at time of processing 

Freedom of Information Act - [5 U.S.C. 552(b)] 

B-1 National security classified information [(b)(1) of the FOIA) 
B-2 Release would disclose internal personnel rules and practices of an agency [(b)(2) of the FOIA) 
B-3 Release would violate a Federal statute [(b)(3) of the FOIA) 
B-4 Release would disclose trade secrets or confidential or financial information [(b)(4) of the FOIA) 
B-6 Release would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy [(b)(6) of the FOIA] 
B-7 Release would disclose information compiled for law enforcement purposes [(b)(7) of the FOIA) 
8-8 Release would disclose information concerning the regulation of financial institutions [(b)(S) of the FOIA) 
8-9 Release would disclose geological or geophysical information concerning wells [(b)(9) of the FOIA) 

C. Closed in accordance with restrictions contained in donor's deed of gift. 

tions 

Bl 



THE WASHING'ION 'I IMES 
Tues day, October 11, 1988 

PAGE F2 I TUESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 1988 

Arnaud de Borchgrave Editor-in-Chief 

Wesley Pruden Managing Editor 

Josette Shiner Deputy Managing Edrtor 

Ronald S. Godwin Senior Vice President 

Paul Rothenburg Vice President. General Manager 

Woody West 
Associate Editor 

Tony Snow 
Editor of the Editonal Page 

P.E. Innerst Mary Lou Forbes 
Assistant Managing Edrtor Editor. Commentary 

Ted Agres Peter A. Holmes 
Assistant Managing Editor Assistant Managing Editor 

America's Newspaper 
Tom Diaz Joseph W. Scopln 

Assistant Managing Edrtor Assistant Managing Editor 

John Wilson 
Assistant Managing Editor 

Domestic disinformation 
Washington Post reporters Bob Woodward 

amd Walter Pincus last week committed the 
domestic equivalent of disinformation in "re­
vealing" the existence of a 1984 intelligence 
finding that authorized counter-terrorist co­
vert action operations. The reporters and 
their anonymous "sources" say that the lan­
guage of the finding constituted a "license to 
kill" and violated the standing ban on assas­
sinations in the president's 1981 executive 
order governing the intelligence community. 

The zip went out of the story when it be­
came clear that it was neither new - several 
papers printed accounts of the order a couple 
of years ago - nor true. 

The facts are that Mr. Reagan in Novem­
ber 1984 signed a finding, as a presidential 
authorization of covert action is called, con­
taining language that, according to the Post's 
account, said that properly authorized covert 
actions undertaken in good faith "must be 
and are deemed to be lawful." Nameless 
sources allege that the wording was designed 
to "circumvent the assassination ban" and 
was "an astounding blank check and truly a 
'license to kill' provision." A former adminis­
tration intelligence official told The Washing­
ton Times last week the Post's story was "ut­
terly false." "No administration officials 
involved in developing the finding believed, 
or had any reason to believe, that it involved 
assassination .... It was never its purpose 
and therefore no officials expressed concern 
about this." 

As White House press spokesman Marlin 
Fitzwater pointed out, the Post's story contra­
dicted what Mr. Woodward reported in his 
1987 book, "Veil: The Secret Wars of the CIA, 
1981-1987." The book says that CIA General 
Counsel Stanley Sporkin believed Mr. Rea­
gan's 1984 finding was not intended to au tho-

rize assassinations, and in the Post story Mr. 
Woodward and Mr. Pincus wrote, "As far as 
can be determined, no one was killed as a 
result of the intelligence findings Reagan 
signed." This includes an incident in which 
Lebanese intelligence officials set off a car 
bomb in Beirut intended to kill a terrorist 
leader. The device instead slaughtered more 
than 80 other people. A congressional inves­
tigation found that the CIA had no connection 
with the Lebanese bombing. But the Post 
account conveniently omitted that fact as 
well as Mr. Sporkin's legal opinion. Finally, 
the White House revised the questionable 
language of the 1984 finding with more ex­
plicit findings in 1985 and 1986. 

So where's the beef? The Post's story ap­
peared at a particularly opportune time - in 
the last mile of the presidential race and just 
as funeral dirges were about to be sung for 
the "48 Hours Bill," which would require the 
administration to give 48 hours notice to the 
intelligence committees of any new covert 
action. Speaker Jim Wright's spillage about 
alleged CIA provocations of the Sandinistas 
has cooled congressional ardor for the bill, at 
least for the rest of the session. 

The 48 hours legislation remains beloved 
by those who seek further weakening of the 
intelligence agencies, oppose all covert ac­
tion and want Congress to make, manage and 
manipulate foreign policy at all levels. Last 
week's "story" may provide a pretext for re­
viving the bill, and those who demand an 
intelligence community strong enough to 
meet the challenges of the 1990s ought to be 
on their guard. Those forces also ought to 
point out that most evidence for the 48-hour 
rule relies, as did the Post story, on sensation 
and fiction, not fact. 
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White House denies backing secret assassinations 
By Mary Belcher 
and Bill Gertz 
THE WASHINGTON TIMES 

The White House and Vice Pres· 
ident George Bush angrily denied a 
published report yesterday that 
President Reagan in 1984 and 1985 
authorized secret counterterrorism 
activities that would have circum· 
vented a government ban on assassi· 
nations. 

Wh1te House spokesman Marlin 
Fitzwater, responding to the story in 
The Washington Post, implied that 
the allegations were a politically­
motivated "cheap shot" designed to 
embarrass Mr. Bush, the Republican 
candidate for president. 

"This is an old story being re­
hashed again, interestingly timed, 

and has no foundation," Mr. Fitz· 
water said. "I think this [r eport] is 
an extraordinary cheap shot. 

"It [the storyl is not true," he said. 
"It impugns the president in a way 
that the author himself has denied in 
previously written stories." 

Mr. Fitzwater noted that the arti· 
cle's co-author, Post Assistant Man­
aging Editor Bob Woodward, in his 
1987 book "Veil" reported that Mr. 
Reagan, in approving covert coun­
terterrorism activities in Lebanon, 
did not intend to supersede a 1981 
executive order on intelligence ac­
tivities that bans anyone in govern­
ment from carrying out assassina­
tions. The 1981 order is still in effect. 

Asked about the controversy at a 
photo session, Mr. Reagan said he 
was "quite upset" by the assertion 

that he signed the 1984 and 1985 or­
ders, which the Post quoted 
"sources" as describing as "a license 
to kill." 

The article said Mr. Bush "would 
have been given a copy of or access 
to the finding." 

But on the campaign trail yester· 
day, Mr. Bush told reporters: "If I 
were not in polite company, I'd tell 
you what I think about a report like 
that." 

Pressed on whether the story was 
true, Mr. Bush said: "Absolutely not. 
Tu circumvent the Jaw against assas­
sination is absolutely absurd. 

"It's ironic that these outrageous 
charges surface from time to time," 
he said. "You just have to gun them 
down." 

Contacted yesterday, Post Manag· 

ing Editor Leonard Downie Jr de­
clined, through a secretary, to com­
ment on the White House denial of 
the story. 

The Post article alleged that Mr. 
Reagan approved secret directives 
that gave U.S. intelligence agencies 
wide latitude m conductmg covert 
intelltgence operations against ter­
rorists. 

According to the article, the di· 
rectives, before they we re re­
scinded, sanctioned actions that 
were considered lawful if carried 
out in "good faith." 

Mr. Fitzwater said the language in 
question was unofficially withdrawn 
in May 1986 when it was replaced by 
another counterterrorism finding, 
but denied that it could have been 
interpreted as having approved as-

sassmations. The spokesman said 
the finding was "formally and spe­
c1fically rescinded" following a Na­
tional Security Council review m 
May 1987. 

The Post report said the 1984 find­
ing was withdrawn after a 1985 car 
bombing in Beirut, which was car· 
ried out by Lebanese intelltgence of· 
ficers whom U.S. officials regarded 
a s potentially useful for their 
counterterrorism efforts. 

A congressional investigation 
later found that the CIA had no con· 
nection with the car bombing. U.S. 
intelligence officials have blamed 
The Post report of the 1985 bombing 
for inspiring terrorists to commit 
the hi)acking of a TWA Flight 847 in 
1985 that led to the killing of U.S. 
Navy diver Robert Stetham. 

A former administration intelli· 
gence official familiar with the find· 
ing described The Post's story as "ut · 
terly false" and said the article did1 
not appear tied to any current event, 
but instead was intended as "an em-, 
barrassment to Bush." 

"No administration officials in-, 
volved in developing the finding be­
lieved, or had any reason to believe, 
that it involved assassination," said 
the former official, who declined to 
be named. "It was never its purpose 
and therefore no officials expressed 
concern about this." 

The only exception, according to 
an intelligence source, was then· 
Deputy CIA Director John Mc­

. Mahon, who opposed the ad minis· 
tration's aggressive counter·, 
terrorism policy. : I 
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Reagan Rebuts Post Report on CIA Antiterror Orders 
Reuter 

President Reagan yesterday denied a 
Washington Post report that he signed 
intelligence findings in 1984 and 1985 
authorizing aggressive covert antiterror­
ism operations that some government 
officials at the time considered to be a 
license to kill for the Central Intelligence 
Agency. 

"No, back in 1981, I issued a directive 
that the United States would not permit 
ass.1ssinatmg anyone m any of the things 
that we were doing and that continues to 
this day," Reagan said when asked about 
the report at a White House photo session. 

The president said he was "quite upset" 
about the story in yesterday's Post, which 
said he had signed secret orders in 1984 

and 1985 authorizing aggressive covert 
activities against terrorists and stating 
any implementing actions would be 
deemed lawful if taken in "good faith." 

According to unidentified sources 
quoted in the article, the language pro­
voked disputes within the government as 
it was widely considered "a license to kill" 
that contradicted Reagan's 1981 execu­
tive order forbidding direct or indirect 
involvement in assassinations by U.S. in­
telligence agents. 

"This is an old story being rehashed 
again, interestingly timed, and has no 
foundation," spokesman Marlin Fitzwater 
told reporters at his daily news briefing. 

Fitzwater said Bob Woodward, who 
wrote the article with Walter Pincus. had 

disclosed the secret antiterrorism order, 
known as a finding, in a 1987 book on the 
CIA, "VEIL: The Secret Wars of the CIA 
1981-1987" and had written that it was 
not intended to authorize assassinations. 

"l think this [the article] 1s an extraor­
dinary cheap shot. It impugns the pres­
ident in a way that the author [Wood­
ward] himself has denied in previously 
written stories," Fitzwater satd. 

Woodward's book generally discussed 
the administration's development of a 
counterterrorism finding; the Post story 
yesterday reported for the first time the 
exact language in the finding, which one 
source said was developed by the admin­
istration to "circumvent" the assassination 
ban. 

The authorizations "deemed" as lawful 
any covert actions, including potentially 
violent ones, taken in "good faith" against 
terrorists. The book and the article 
quoted officials who said they thought the 
finding opened the door to potential in­
volvement in assassinations. 

Yesterday, Fitzwater declined to an­
swer questions about the meaning of the 
language in the findings. Although he con­
firmed, as the Post reported, that the 
findings had been rescinded, he declined 
to say why they had been withdrawn. 

The orders at issue-actually one pres­
idential finding that went through several 
revisions-were rescinded in early 1987 
as part of a shakeup of the National Se­
curity Council (NSC). 

That shakeup was prompted by the dis­
closure of the NSC role in the Iran-contra 
affair. 
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1934 Order 
Gave CIA 
Latitude 
Reagan's Secret Move 
To Counter Terrorists 
Called 'License to Kill' 

By Bob Woodward 
and Walter Pincus 
Wa>hm~ton Pll>t St.if! Wnl•'t• 

President Reagan signed intel­
ligence authorizations in 1984 and 
1985 for aggressive covert oper­
ations against terrorists that said 
any actions taken under the orders 
would be "deemed" lawful if con­
ducted in "good faith," according to 
informed sources. 

This language provoked disputes 
in the government because it was 
generally considered "a license to 
kill," sources said. An executive 
order then-and now-in effect 
also signed by Reagan specifically 
banned any direct or indirect in­
volvement by U.S. intelligence 
agents in assassinations. 

But key administration officials 
wanted to undertake preemptive 
operations that could result m ktll­
ings-for example, blowing up a 
known terrorist hideout in Beirut­
to combat increasing terrorist ac­
tivity, the sources said. These of­
ficials also wanted legal protection 
from the existing executive order 
that prohibited any U.S. govern­
ment participation in assassination, 
the sources said. 

One source familiar with the de­
tails of the findings said the lan­
guage was specifically designed to 
"circumvent the assassination ban," 
the latest version of which was 
signed Dec. 4, 1981, by Reagan. 

Officials at the Central Intelli­
gence Agency, including then-Di­
rector William J. Casey, wanted 
such language to protect U.S. field 
officers and the foreign stnke 
teams contemplated by the intelli­
gence findings, sources said. 

A key source involved with the 
counterterrorist findings said they 
were an "astounding blank check 
and truly a 'license to kill' provi­
sion." A former White House official 
called the orders the "go-anywhere, 
do-anything" authority. 

As far as could be determined, no 
one was killed as a result of the in­
telligence findings Reagan signed. 

Knowledge of this finding was 
tightly held, but it was known to 
key officials. White House officials 

See FINDINGS, Al9, Col. 1 
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Two Findings Turgeted Terrorists 
FINDINGS, From Al 

have said that Vice President Bush 
would have been given a copy of or 
access to the finding. 

A spokesman for Bush had no 
immediate comment last night. 
James A. Baker III, Bush's presi­
dential campaign chairman, who 
was White House chief of staff 
when Reagan signed the 1984 find­
ing, declined to comment. 

The Reagan administration's de­
cision to undertake potentially vi­
olent actions to counter terrorism 
grew out of intense frustration with 
continued car-bombings of U.S. fa­
cilities and the taking of hostages in 
Lebanon, sources said. Reagan 
signed the first finding with the so­
called license-to-kill language on 
Nov. 13, 1984, just days after his 
landslide reelection victory. The 
House and Senate intelligence com­
mittees were not told of the critical 
language of the finding, the sources 
said. 

That finding was rescinded on 
April 10, 1985, a month after a car 
bomb exploded in Beirut near the 
residence of Mohammed Hussein 
Fadlallah, leader of the Hezbollah 
faction of Iranian fundamentalists 
that the United States has tied to 
terrorist actions including the 1983 
bombing of the U.S. Marine Corps 
compound in Lebanon. 

The 1985 explosion killed more 
than 80 people, but not Fadlallah. 
The bombing was carried out by a 
group of Lebanese intelligence of­
ficers who U.S. officials originally 
considered potential assets for an­
titerrorist operations envisioned in 
the Nov. 13, 1984, intelligence 
finding. 

However. sources have said that 
Casey-frustrated by his agency's 
failure to act rapidly-asked Saudi 
Arabia to fund and organize the 
Fadlallah bombing as an "off-the­
books" operation outside official 
U.S. channels. 

A month later, in May 1985, The 
Washington Post reported that Leb­
anese intelligence agents had been 
responsible for the Fadlallah bomb­
ing, and that Reagan's order autho­
rizing preemptive antiterrorist ac­
tivity had been rescinded. 

This report provoked concern in 
the congressional committees 
charged with overseeing covert ac­
tivities, which demanded an expla­
nation from the administration. 
They were then given the language 
of the Nov. 13, 1984, finding. Com-

WILLIAM J. CASEY 
••. wanted to protect CIA officers 

mittee members raised questions 
about its apparently broad author­
ization of actions that could evade 
the prohibition on any involvement 
in assassinations. The CIA assured 
the committees that the order had 
been rescinded and no longer ap­
plied, sources said. 

However, after the hijacking of 
TWA Flight 847 in June 1985, Rea­
gan signed a second finding on Aug. 
11 with similar "good-faith" lan­
guage. 

This time the committees were 
briefed quite soon after the finding 
was signed, and they continued to 
raise questions about this provision 
of the order. Yet another intelli­
gence finding on antiterrorist ac­
tivity superseding the Aug. 11, 
1985, finding was signed on May 
12, 1986, without the disputed lan­
guage. It remains in force. 

Interviews here and abroad and a 
detailed review of records compiled 
during investigations into the Iran­
contra affair show that the full ex­
tent and scope of the White House 
secret war against terrorists oper· 
ated on many tracks, and some as­
pects of it are still secret. 

The language in the 1984 and 
1985 findings is somewhat ambig­
uous. The orders state that actions 
undertaken in good faith and as part 
of an approved operation "must be 
and are deemed" to be lawful. As 
one source said, the language is 
"inconsistent;" the drafters seemed 
to want to have it both ways, insist­
ing that all actions "must be" lawful 

but also stating that they "are 
deemed" lawful in advance. 

"It's enough for any lawyer to 
drive a truck through," the source 
said, "but it makes it clear that (the 
administration] foresaw few limits" 
on the counterterrorist operations. 

Officials involved at the time said 
there was an intense debate in the 
administration about the language 
in the findings. Participants in the 
debate knew that the language 
could be taken as a means of cir­
cumventing the ban on assassina­
tion, informed sources said. 

But others said the "must-be" for­
mulation was a deliberate effort to 
introduce ambiguity. Inclusion of 
those words satisfied lawyers and 
officials who feared the finding con­
flicted with the presidential ban on 
any involvement in assassination, 
according to several sources. 

The language used in the Nov. 
13, 1984, finding offered protection 
for U.S. officials and intelligence 
operatives similar to that contained 
in the first finding Reagan issued on 
the secret Iranian arms sales. In 
that Iran finding of Dec. 5, 1985, 
the president gave retroactive ap­
proval, stating that "All prior ac­
tions taken by U.S. Government of­
ficials in furtherance of this effort 
are hereby ratified." 

The Iran arms sales were one 
manifestation of the frustrations 
that mounted in the top ranks of the 
administration in 1985. It was dur­
ing that year that Casey went to the 
Saudis to get them first to try to as­
sassinate and then to bribe Fadlal­
lah. 

Robert C. McFarlane, then Rea· 
gan's national security adviser, be­
gan the arms sales to Iran, and John 
M. Poindexter, then the national se­
curity deputy, concentrated on a se­
cret attempt to get Egypt to attack 
Libya as part of a plan to oust Lib­
yan leader Moammar Qadhafi. 

During this period, June 1985, 
then-National Security Council staff 
aide Oliver L. North commenced an 
operation with McFarlane's approv­
al to use two Drug Enforcement 
Administration agents to bribe oth­
ers for the freedom of the American 
hostages at $1 million apiece. 

Counterterrorism had become a 
"cult" inside the White House and 
there was "a surge of let's go get 
the terrorists," according to a key 
U.S. official. 

Staff researcher William F. Powers 
fr. contributed to this report. 
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